YORK WATER CO Form PRE 14A March 10, 2014 UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, DC 20549

SCHEDULE 14A (RULE 14a-101)

# INFORMATION REQUIRED IN PROXY STATEMENT

#### SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No. \_\_\_\_)

Filed by the Registrant [x] Filed by a Party other than the Registrant [ ]

Check the appropriate box:
[x] Preliminary Proxy Statement
[ ] Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
[ ] Definitive Proxy Statement
[ ] Definitive Additional Materials
[ ] Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

The York Water Company (Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

[x] No fee required.

[] Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.

(1)Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:

(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):

(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

(5)Total fee paid:

[] Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

[] Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

(1) Amount Previously Paid:

(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:

(3) Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:

### PRELIMINARY

## THE YORK WATER COMPANY 130 EAST MARKET STREET YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 17401

2014

### NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

#### TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE YORK WATER COMPANY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of The York Water Company will be held at The Strand-Capitol Performing Arts Center, 50 North George Street, York, Pennsylvania, on Monday, May 5, 2014, at 1:00 p.m. for the purpose of taking action upon the following proposals:

- (1)To elect two (2) Directors to three-year terms of office;
- (2) To ratify the appointment of ParenteBeard LLC as the independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014;
- (3)To approve, by non-binding vote, the compensation of the named executive officers;
- (4) To approve The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan, as amended October 1, 2013; and (5) To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on February 28, 2014, as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting, and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

It is important that your shares be represented and voted at the Annual Meeting regardless of the size of your holdings. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we encourage you to vote your shares in advance of the Annual Meeting by using one of the methods described below:

By mail – If you received a printed proxy card, mark, sign, date and mail the proxy card (see instructions on the Proxy Materials Notice on how to request a printed proxy card);

·By phone – Call the toll-free telephone number listed on your Proxy Materials Notice or on your proxy card;

·By Internet - Visit the website shown on your Proxy Materials Notice or on the proxy card to vote via the Internet; or

In Person – Shareholders of record may deliver their completed proxy card in person at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders or by completing a ballot available upon request at the meeting. Beneficial shareholders whose shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee must obtain a legal proxy from the holder of record (that is, your bank, broker or nominee) to be able to vote in person at the Annual Meeting.

If you plan on attending the meeting, a boxed lunch will be provided beginning at 12:00 p.m. Please RSVP to Bonnie at (717)718-2942 or e-mail <u>bonnier@yorkwater.com</u> if you will be joining us for lunch.

Thank you for your continued interest and support of The York Water Company!

By order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ Bruce C. McIntosh

BRUCE C. McINTOSH Secretary

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Proxy Statement	1
Purpose of the Meeting	2
Voting at the Meeting	2
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial	2
Owners and Management	Z
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership	4
Reporting Compliance	4
Proposal 1: Election of Directors	4
Executive Officers of the Company	8
Corporate Governance	9
Board Selection	9
Director Independence	9
Board Leadership Structure	10
Board Role in Risk Oversight	10
Board Committees and Functions	10
Related Party Transactions	11
Communication With the Board of Directors	11
Executive Sessions of the Board	11
Stock Ownership	12
Code of Ethics	12
Report of the Audit Committee	12
Proposal 2: Ratification of Appointment of	
Independent Registered	
Public Accounting Firm	13
Compensation of Directors and Executive	1.4
Officers	14
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	14
Compensation Committee Report	18
Compensation Risk Assessment	18
Compensation Committee Interlocks and	10
Insider Participation	19
Summary Compensation Table	19
2013 Grants of Plan Based Awards	20
2013 Pension Benefits	21
2013 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation	22
Payout of Deferred Compensation Accounts	22
Potential Payments Upon Termination or	24
Change in Control	24
2013 Director Compensation	29
Proposal 3: To Approve, by Non-Binding	
Vote, the Compensation of the	
Named Executive Officers	30
Proposal 4: To Approve The York Water	
Company Employees' Stock	
Purchase Plan, as amended October 1, 2013	31
Discretionary Authority	34
	34

Shareholder Proposals and Nominations for<br/>Directors34Other Matters34Appendix A34

## THE YORK WATER COMPANY 130 EAST MARKET STREET YORK, PENNSYLVANIA 17401

2014

#### PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying form of proxy are being furnished to the shareholders of The York Water Company (hereinafter referred to as the "Company") in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of the Company, whereby shareholders would appoint Michael W. Gang, Jeffrey R. Hines, and George Hay Kain III, and each of them, as Proxies on behalf of the shareholders, to be used at the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company to be held at 1:00 p.m. at The Strand Capitol Performing Arts Center, 50 North George Street, York, Pennsylvania, Monday, May 5, 2014 (the "Annual Meeting"), and at any adjournment thereof.

Solicitation of proxies will be made by mail, telephone and via the internet. Those shareholders who previously opted out of printed copies of the proxy materials will receive a Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Notice") by mail. The Notice will instruct you as to how you may access and review the proxy materials. The Notice also instructs you as to how you may submit your proxy over the Internet or by telephone. If you previously opted out of printed copies of the proxy materials but would like to receive a printed copy of such materials, or vote by telephone, you should follow the instructions included in the Notice. Those shareholders who have requested printed copies and some of those who have not specifically opted out of printed copies of the proxy materials will be provided printed copies. It is anticipated that proxy materials will first be mailed and made available on the Internet on 2014.

The expense of this solicitation will be paid by the Company. If necessary, some of the officers of the Company and regular employees of the Company may solicit proxies personally or by telephone for no additional pay. Banks, brokerage houses and other institutions and fiduciaries will be requested to forward the proxy materials to beneficial owners and to obtain authorization for the execution of proxies.

A shareholder who submits a proxy electronically, by telephone, or completes and forwards the enclosed proxy is not precluded from attending the Annual Meeting and voting his or her shares in person, and may revoke the proxy by delivering a later dated proxy or by written notification at any time before the proxy is exercised.

We offer a service approved by the SEC called householding. This service allows shareholders of record who have the same address and last name and do not participate in electronic delivery of proxy materials to receive only one copy of our Proxy Statement and Annual Report. We believe this service provides greater convenience to our shareholders and saves money by reducing our printing and mailing costs and fees.

If you and other shareholders of record with whom you share an address and last name currently receive multiple copies of our Proxy Statement and Annual Report and would like to participate in our householding program, please contact Broadridge Financial Solutions, or Broadridge, by calling toll-free at 800-542-1061, or by writing to Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Householding Department, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New York 11717. Alternatively, if you participate in householding and wish to revoke your consent and receive separate copies of our Proxy Statement and Annual Report, please contact Broadridge as described above.

A number of brokerage firms have instituted householding. If you hold your shares in street name, please contact your bank, broker or other holder of record to request information about householding.

### PURPOSE OF THE MEETING

At the Annual Meeting, shareholders of the Company will consider and vote upon four proposals: (i) to elect two (2) Directors to serve for a term of three (3) years; (ii) to ratify the appointment of ParenteBeard LLC as the independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014; (iii) to approve, by non-binding vote, the compensation of the named executive officers; and (iv) to approve The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan, as amended October 1, 2013. Shareholders may also consider and vote upon such other matters as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

## VOTING AT THE MEETING

The outstanding securities of the Company entitled to vote at the meeting consist of 12,834,423 shares of our common stock. The presence at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy of shareholders entitled to cast a majority of the votes that all shareholders are entitled to cast will constitute a quorum for the Annual Meeting.

The record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting or at any adjournment or adjournments thereof was the close of business on February 28, 2014. Shareholders are entitled to one vote for each share on all matters coming before the meeting.

In accordance with Pennsylvania law, a shareholder can withhold authority to vote for all nominees for Directors or can withhold authority to vote for certain nominees for Directors. Directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast, meaning that the two nominees who receive the most affirmative votes will be elected. Votes that are withheld will be excluded from the vote and will have no effect.

Any votes that are withheld on the proposals to ratify the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm, to approve executive compensation or to approve The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan, as amended October 1, 2013 will not be counted for or against the proposal. If a signed proxy is returned with no markings for certain proposals, the votes will be counted as recommended by the Board of Directors.

Brokers who have received no voting instructions from their customers will not have discretion to vote with respect to election of directors, executive compensation or The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan, but will have the discretion to vote with respect to the proposal to ratify the appointment of the Company's auditors.

## SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of the Company's common stock as of February 28, 2014, by (1) each director, director nominee and executive officer named in the summary compensation table included elsewhere herein; and (2) all executive officers, directors and director nominees as a group.

The information appearing in the following table with respect to beneficial ownership of common stock of the Company has been furnished to the Company by the two nominees, the seven directors continuing in office and the six executive officers, all as of February 28, 2014.

The table includes shares owned or beneficially owned by the respective individuals as of February 28, 2014. No individual has a specific right to acquire beneficial ownership of any additional shares within 60 days.

No person or entity, so far as known to the Company, beneficially owns five (5) percent or more of the Company's outstanding common stock as of February 28, 2014.

Number of Shares	Percent of Total
Beneficially Owned (1)	Shares Outstanding (2)

1) Directors, director nominees and named executive officers:

Cynthia A. Dotzel, CPA	14,126	0.11
Michael W. Gang, Esq.	10,152	(3) 0.08
Joseph T. Hand	8,549	(4) 0.07
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E.	50,349	(5) 0.39
George W. Hodges	5,476	(6) 0.04
George Hay Kain, III	24,557	(7) 0.19
Bruce C. McIntosh	5,473	(8) 0.04
Kathleen M. Miller	6,099	0.05
Robert P. Newcomer	1,030	(9) 0.01
Jeffrey S. Osman	3,715	(10)0.03
Steven R. Rasmussen, CPA	105	0.00
John H. Strine	5,478	(11)0.04
		0.00
Ernest J. Waters	505	

2) All directors, director nominees and executive officers as a group

All Directors and Executive Officers as a group (15 persons)	136.401	(12)1.05
The Directors and Encount of Officers as a group (ie persons)	100,.01	(1=)1100

Except as indicated in the footnotes below, directors and officers possessed sole voting power and sole investment

(1) power with respect to all shares set forth in this column. All Directors and Officers can be reached through the executive offices of the Company.

(2) The percentage for each individual or group is based on 12,997,237 shares outstanding as of February 28, 2014.

- (3) Mr. Gang shares voting and investment power on all held shares with his wife. Includes 8,069 shares owned jointly by Mr. Hand's wife for which he shares voting and investment power.
- (4) Includes 480 shares held by Mr. Hand's children for which Mr. Hand disclaims beneficial ownership.
- (5) Includes 8,045 shares held by Mr. Hines' wife, for which Mr. Hines disclaims beneficial ownership.
   Includes 4,560 shares held by the Hodges Family Foundation, for which Mr. Hodges claims indirect beneficial ownership.

(6)

- (8) Mr. McIntosh shares voting and investment power on all held shares with his wife.
- (9) Mr. Newcomer shares voting and investment power on all held shares with his wife.
- (10) Includes 324 shares owned by Mr. Osman's wife, for which Mr. Osman disclaims beneficial ownership.
- (11)Mr. Strine shares voting and investment power on all held shares with his wife.

<sup>(7)</sup> Includes 15,059 shares held by the estate of Mr. Kain's grandfather, for which he is one of three co-trustees and shares voting power and investment power.

(12) Includes shares owned by family members, unnamed executive officers and certain other shares, as to which some directors and officers disclaim any beneficial ownership and which are further disclosed in the notes above.

### SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Chief Operating Officer Hand reported purchases on October 9, 2013 made by his children through the Direct Stock Purchase and Sale Plan on October 17, 2013. Director Rasmussen reported a December 26, 2013 stock purchase on December 31, 2013.

Other than the aforementioned transactions, the Company believes that during the year ended December 31, 2013, all directors and executive officers timely complied with all applicable filing requirements of Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The foregoing statement is based solely upon a review of copies of reports on Forms 3, 4 and 5 furnished to the Company and written representations of its Directors and executive officers that no other reports were required.

#### PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The bylaws of the Company provide that the Board of Directors will consist of no less than eight Directors and no more than twelve directors, segregated into three classes, and elected to staggered three-year terms of office. Each director class consists of two to four directors.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee recommends that all the nominees, each of whom is currently serving as Director, be elected at the Annual Meeting, to serve for the ensuing three (3) years and until their respective successors have been elected and qualified. Each share represented by the enclosed proxy will be voted for each of the nominees listed, unless authority to do so is withheld. If any nominee becomes unavailable for any reason or if a vacancy should occur before the election (which events are not anticipated), the shares represented by the enclosed proxy may be voted as may be determined by the Proxies.

The two Directors are to be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting, meaning that the two directors receiving the most votes are elected, whether or not they receive a majority of the vote.

#### NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO THREE YEAR TERMS EXPIRING IN 2017

Mr. Newcomer has been President of Newcomer Consulting LLC, providing financial consulting services for public, private and not for profit organizations since 2003. Prior to starting his own business, Mr. Newcomer was with Glatfelter, York, PA, a public company and global manufacturer of specialty paper and engineered products from 1972 – 2003. He was an Executive Vice President for Glatfelter from 1993 – 2001, and President and Chief Operating Officer from 2001 – 2003. Mr. Newcomer also served as Dean of Business Affairs and CFO for York College of Pennsylvania from 2004 – 2006 and Interim President for Robert P. York County Community Foundation from 2008 – 2009. He currently serves as a director and a member Newcomer of the compensation and employee benefits committees at Burnham Corporation, Lancaster, PA, a public company; a director and audit committee member of Adhesives Research, Inc. of Glen Rock, PA; a Director director of Topflight Corporation of Glen Rock, PA; and a director and audit committee chairman of since 2013 Conductive Technologies of York, PA, which are private companies. Mr. Newcomer also participates as an officer, Board or committee member with various community and non-profit organizations. The Board determined that Mr. Newcomer's experience leading a large public company, his financial background, board and committee experience with other organizations, as well as his familiarity with the community in which York Water serves, would be a significant asset to the Company's Board of Directors.

Mr. Waters, now retired, served as Area Vice President and York Area Manager, Met-Ed, a FirstEnergy Company (an investor owned utility) from 1998 to 2009. In addition to management, Mr. Waters' experience includes public accounting, internal auditing and serving as an expert accounting witness in rate proceedings before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and the New York Public Service Commission. Mr. Waters was previously a Certified Public Accountant and holds an MBA degree. He serves as a director, chairman of the special joint Ernest J. compliance committee, vice chairman of the risk committee and member of the audit committee of Waters Fulton Financial Corporation, and a director and chairman of the trust committee of Fulton Bank of Age 64 Lancaster, PA (a subsidiary of Fulton Financial Corporation), both of which are public companies. Mr. Director Waters serves on the board of Wellspan Health (York Hospitals' parent corp.), chairs the audit committee, since 2007 and is a member of the executive committee. He also serves and has served on the boards and committees of other nonprofit community organizations. The Board considered Mr. Waters' prior experience in the utility industry and with regulatory matters and his current public company director and committee experience to be valuable and determined that his continued service on the Board will be beneficial to the Company's Board of Directors.

5

Age 65

#### DIRECTORS WITH TERMS EXPIRING IN 2015

Mr. Gang is a principal with Post & Schell PC, Harrisburg, PA, a Pennsylvania-based law firm, Michael concentrating in regulatory matters. Mr. Gang was a partner in Morgan, Lewis & Bockius, Harrisburg, PA, W. an international law firm, from 1984 to 2005. Mr. Gang is counsel to numerous water, gas, and electric Gang, utilities which are regulated by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission and has represented public Esq. utilities over a broad range of financial and economic regulation, corporate governance and compensation Age 63 issues for 36 years. Post & Schell PC is currently regulatory counsel for the Company. The Board believes Director Mr. Gang's legal and regulatory knowledge, as well as his experience with the Pennsylvania Public Utility since Commission will continue to be a great benefit to the Company's Board of Directors. 1996

Mr. Hines has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 2008. He was Chief Operating Officer and Secretary from 2007 to 2008, and Vice President of Engineering from 1995 to 2006. Mr. Hines is a director and a member of the compensation, audit and corporate governance and nominating committees of Codorus Valley Bancorp in York, PA, and Peoples Bank, A Codorus Valley Jeffrey R. Hines, Company, York, PA (both public companies). Mr. Hines is a director of Peoples Water Service Co. in P.E. Towson, MD (a private company). Mr. Hines is a trustee and corporate secretary of York College of Age 52 Pennsylvania, a director of the National Association of Water Companies and the American Water Works Director Association, and serves as director or committee member of various community and non-profit since organizations. Mr. Hines is a licensed Professional Engineer in PA and MD, and holds MBA and law 2008 degrees. The Board considered Mr. Hines' experience within the Company, his industry experience, and his educational background and determined that his continued service on the Board will be beneficial to the Company's Board of Directors.

Mr. Hodges, now retired, served as non-executive Chairman of the Board of The Wolf Organization, regional distributor of kitchen and bath products and specialty building products, from 2008 to 2009. Prior to being Chairman, Mr. Hodges was a member of the Office of the President of The Wolf Organization from 1986 to 2006. Mr. Hodges is lead director, and a member of the audit, compensation and executive committees of Fulton Financial Corporation (a public company), in Lancaster, PA. He also serves as a George W. director and compensation committee chairman of The Wolf Organization, York, PA, a director and audit committee member of Topflight Corporation of Glen Rock, PA, a director and audit committee member of Hodges Age 63 Conductive Technologies, York, PA, and a director of Adhesives Research, Glen Rock, PA, which are all Director privately held companies. In addition, Mr. Hodges is a director, as well as serving on the audit and nominating committees of Burnham Holdings, Lancaster, PA (a public company). Mr. Hodges is an NACD since 2000 (National Association of Corporate Directors) Governance Fellow. He also serves and has served on the boards or committees of various non-profit and community organizations. The Board determined that Mr. Hodges' business experience and leadership in the community as well as his extensive board and committee service with various organizations will continue to benefit the Company's Board of Directors.

Mr. Kain has been an academic since 2007, and was a consultant from 2004 to 2007. Mr. Kain was an George attorney from 1982 to 2003, handling pipeline condemnation cases for a local utility, and cases involving real estate, and estates and trusts. Mr. Kain was a solicitor for York County Children and Youth Services Kain, III where he also practiced in juvenile court. Mr. Kain is also actively involved in various non-profit Age 65 organizations. The Board considered Mr. Kain's legal experience as well as his commitment and Director contributions to the Company over the past 26 years and determined that his continued service will be since beneficial to the Company's Board of Directors. 1986

#### DIRECTORS WITH TERMS EXPIRING IN 2016

Ms. Dotzel is a certified public accountant, and has been a Principal with SF & Company CPAs & Business Advisors since January 2009. Prior to her current position, Ms. Dotzel was a Founder, Secretary and Treasurer of Dotzel & Company, CPAs from 1980 to 2008. Ms. Dotzel serves as a director of Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc., York, PA, and Peoples Bank, A Codorus Valley Company, York, PA (both public companies) and is a member of the compensation, audit, corporate governance Cynthia A. Dotzel, CPA and nominating committees of both companies. Ms. Dotzel served as a director of Waypoint Bank and Age 59 Waypoint Financial Corporation and its predecessor York Federal Savings and Loan from 1984 through Director 2005, and audit committee chairman from 1989 through 2005. She also serves and has served on the since 2009 boards or committees of various non-profit organizations. The Board considered Ms. Dotzel's experience in auditing and financial matters, as well as her public company experience and community involvement, and determined that her continued service will be beneficial to the Company's Board of Directors.

Mr. Osman, now retired, served as President & CEO of the Company from 2003 to 2008, Vice President of Finance, Secretary and Treasurer from 1995 to 2002, and Controller from 1983 to 1995. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Osman was a regulatory consultant for Gannett Fleming in Camp Hill, PA for 4 years. Prior to that, Mr. Osman worked at a regulated telephone utility for 15 years. During his tenure with the Company, Mr. Osman was a director with the National Association of Water Companies at both the state and national levels as well as Chairman of the Pennsylvania Chapter. He also has served with numerous community and non-profit organizations. The Board considered Mr. Osman's prior experience in the industry with regulatory and financial matters as well as his knowledge of and longstanding service to the Company in many capacities, and determined that his continued service will be beneficial to the Company's Board of Directors.

Mr. Rasmussen has been Chief Executive Officer and General Manager for Adams Electric Cooperative, Inc., an electric distribution cooperative in south-central Pennsylvania, since 2006. Mr. Rasmussen served as Accounting and Member Services Manager with the same organization from 1999 to 2006. Prior to joining Adams Electric, Mr. Rasmussen served in various other capacities including college Steven R. faculty and auditor for various accounting firms. Mr. Rasmussen serves on the boards and executive Rasmussen, committees of the Adams Utility Services Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Adams Electric, and CPA Mid-Atlantic Cooperative Solutions, Inc. which does business as Aero Energy in New Oxford, PA (both Age 41 private companies). He also serves and has served on the boards and committees of numerous Director community, non-profit and professional organizations. In addition to his utility experience, Mr. since 2011 Rasmussen is a certified public accountant, and a leader in the community of some of the Company's recently added water systems. The Board views Mr. Rasmussen's utility experience, his financial and educational background, and his knowledge and visibility in the Adams County area as beneficial to the Company's Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" each of the nominees.

## EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

#### Name Positions and Offices Held

Joseph T. Mr. Hand has been Chief Operating Officer for the Company since March 2008. Prior to his current position, Mr. Hand was Chief of the Navigation Branch, Baltimore District, for the U.S. Army Corps of Age 51 Engineers from September 2006 to February 2008, and Deputy Commander and Deputy District Officer Engineer for the Corps of Engineers from June 2003 to September 2006. Prior to the Army Corps, Mr. since 2008 Hand held various positions in the U.S. Army.

Kathleen Ms. Miller has been Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company since January 2003. Prior to her current position, Ms. Miller was Controller and Assistant Treasurer of the Company from October 2001 to December 2002, and Accounting Manager from March 1996 to September 2001. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Miller held a variety of accounting and financial positions with two large companies since 2003 in the York County area.

Vernon L. Mr. Bracey has been Vice President of Customer Service of the Company since March 2003. Prior to his current position, Mr. Bracey was Customer Service Manager from January 2000 to February 2003 and Age 52 Meter Reading Manager from September 1998 to December 1999. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
 Officer Bracey held various positions in economic development, energy services and public and community since 2003 relations at GPU Energy, A First Energy Company, from March 1983 through August 1998.

Bruce C.
 McIntosh
 Age 61
 Officer
 since 1998
 Mr. McIntosh has been Vice President-Human Resources, Secretary and Assistant Treasurer of the Company since March 2008. Prior to his current position, Mr. McIntosh was Vice President-Human Resources and Assistant Treasurer from January 2003 to February 2008, Vice President-Human Resources from May 1998 to December 2002 and Director of Human Resources from November 1996 to April 1998. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. McIntosh held various human resources positions in the healthcare industry.

Mark S. Mr. Snyder has been Vice President-Engineering since May 2009. Prior to his current position, Mr.
Snyder, Snyder was Engineering Manager from October 2007 to April 2009 and Engineer from December 2006
P.E. to October 2007. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Snyder was a project engineer with Buchart Horn,
Age 43 Inc., York, PA, an international engineering firm from April 2001 to December 2006, and a project
Officer engineer for Rettew Associates, York, PA, a national engineering firm, from December 1996 to April
since 2009 2001. Mr. Snyder is a licensed Professional Engineer in Pennsylvania.

John H. Strine Age 57 Officer since 2009 Mr. Strine has been Vice President-Operations since May 2009. Prior to his current position, Mr. Strine was Operations Manager from February 2008 to May 2009, Maintenance and Grounds Superintendent from August 1991 to February 2008, Assistant Superintendent from June 1985 to July 1991, and held various other positions with the Company prior to 1991.

#### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors operates under specific corporate governance principles and guidelines based on the Company's Bylaws and Standing Resolutions. The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee ("the Committee") monitors, develops and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors based on these principles and guidelines. Some of the principles and guidelines are listed below.

### **Board Selection**

The bylaws of the Company provide that the Board of Directors will consist of no less than eight Directors and no more than twelve directors, who are elected to staggered three-year terms of office. There is a mandatory retirement age of 73 for all directors.

The Committee considers candidates for Board membership suggested by its members and other Board members, as well as management and shareholders. The Committee recommends to the Board the appropriate size, function and needs of the Board, so that the Board as a whole collectively possesses a broad range of skills, industry and other knowledge and business and other experience useful to the effective oversight of the Company. Some of these skills include crisis management, accounting and finance, corporate governance, merger and acquisition, business development and risk management. The Committee also seeks Board members from diverse backgrounds with a reputation for integrity. In addition, Directors should have experience in positions with a high degree of responsibility, be leaders in the companies or institutions with which they are affiliated and be selected based upon contributions that they can make to the Company. The Committee considers all of these qualities when selecting, subject to Board ratification, candidates for Director. No distinctions are made between internally recommended candidates and those recommended by shareholders.

## Director Independence

The Company's Common Stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. NASDAQ listing rules require that a majority of the Company's directors be "independent directors" as defined by NASDAQ corporate governance standards. Generally, a director does not qualify as an independent director if the director has, or in the past three years has had, certain material relationships or affiliations with the Company, its external or internal auditors, or, is an employee of the Company. The Board has determined that directors Dotzel, Gang, Hodges, Kain, Newcomer, Osman, Rasmussen and Waters are independent directors under the NASDAQ listing standards. Mr. Hines, who is an employee of the Company, is not considered an independent director.

The Board based these determinations primarily on a review of the responses of the Directors and executive officers to an annual questionnaire regarding employment history, affiliations, family and other relationships, together with an examination of those companies with whom the Company transacts business.

In making the determination that Mr. Gang is independent under the NASDAQ rules, the Board considered payments of \$186,280 made to Post & Schell PC, a law firm in which Mr. Gang is a principal. Post & Schell PC is the Company's regulatory counsel. The amounts paid represent less than 0.3% of Post & Schell PC revenue in 2013. Mr. Gang is not a controlling shareholder of the firm.

In making the determination that Mr. Hodges and Mr. Waters are independent under the NASDAQ rules, the Board considered the Company's banking and credit arrangements with Fulton Financial Corporation and its affiliates. Mr. Hodges is lead director, and a member of the audit, compensation and executive committees of Fulton Financial Corporation, and Mr. Waters is a board member, Chairman of the joint compliance committee and a member of the

audit and risk committees of Fulton Financial Corporation, and a board member and Chairman of the trust committee of Fulton Bank. Payments of \$107,106 made by the Company to these entities were not material to Fulton Bank or Fulton Financial Corporation.

In addition to these relationships, the Company purchases from and sells services to certain directors or the organizations with which they are affiliated at rates that are either regulated or the same as those charged to the same class of customers.

The Board determined that the noted relationships do not create a conflict of interest or impair any director's judgment with respect to Board member responsibilities. Directors who are involved with entities being discussed or voted upon at a meeting abstain from voting on that matter.

#### Board Leadership Structure

The preference of the Board, per its Standing Resolutions, is for the Chairman of the Board to be an independent director per the NASDAQ rules. Generally, independent directors' provide oversight and protect shareholder interests, and they offer more objective input and leadership to the Board. Due to the current composition of the Board, having one director who is a current Company employee and one director who is a previous employee of the Company, the Board believes it is in the best interest of shareholders to have an independent director as Chairman. The Chairman leads regular executive sessions of the Board's independent directors.

#### Board Role in Risk Oversight

The Board and its Committees are responsible for oversight of the Company's risk management process. The Audit Committee is responsible for oversight of risks relating to the Company's financial statements, financial reporting processes, the evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and compliance with certain of the Company's ethics policies.

The Compensation Committee is responsible for monitoring risks associated with the design and administration of the Company's compensation programs and performs the annual performance review of the CEO. Other risks such as regulatory risk, environmental risk, and strategic risk are monitored by the Executive Committee, the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee, or the full Board.

Senior management of the Company is responsible for identifying risks, managing risks, and reporting and communicating risks and mitigation efforts back to the Board of Directors or the designated committee. While certain elements of risk are addressed at each Board meeting, management and the Board of Directors conduct a comprehensive analysis of risk on an annual basis. The Board believes a Chairman that is independent of management adds another layer of insight to the risk assessment process.

#### Board Committees and Functions

The Company has an Executive Committee, an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, and a Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee, all of which are composed of members of the Board of Directors. The Audit, Compensation, and Nomination and Corporate Governance committees must be composed of at least three directors all of which are considered independent directors under the NASDAQ rules. Each of these three key committees has a charter which is reviewed periodically, and which is posted on the Company's website at <u>www.yorkwater.com</u> under "Investor Relations" then "Corporate Governance".

The Executive Committee is empowered to function as delegated by the Board of Directors. Their main focus is on budgeting, ratemaking, and debt and equity financing. The Executive Committee is composed of the following Directors appointed by the Board: George W. Hodges, Chairman; Michael W. Gang, Esq.; Jeffrey S. Osman; and Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E. The Executive Committee held two (2) meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

The Audit Committee monitors the audit functions of the independent public accountants, and reviews the Company's financial reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee is composed of the following independent

Directors appointed by the Board: Cynthia A. Dotzel, CPA, Chairperson; Steven R. Rasmussen, CPA; and Ernest J. Waters. Based on a review of the background and experience of the members of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has determined that all members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and are "audit committee financial experts" within the meaning of applicable SEC rules. The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

The Compensation Committee considers and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning the appropriate compensation package for the corporate officers, Directors and members of the 10

Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company, including incentives. Compensation for corporate officers is further explained in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement. Director and committee member compensation is based on a review of fees paid by peers and other public companies.

The Compensation Committee is composed of the following independent Directors appointed by the Board: Ernest J. Waters, Chairman; George Hay Kain, III; and Robert P. Newcomer. The Compensation Committee held two (2) meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee recommends the appropriate Board structure, reviews the Company's succession planning, oversees the Board's annual evaluation of its performance and the performance of other Board Committees, and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors for nominations for Directors and Officers of the Company. This Committee will consider nominees recommended by shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Company's bylaws.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee is composed of the following independent Directors appointed by the Board: Michael W. Gang, Chairman; Cynthia A. Dotzel; and Steven R. Rasmussen. The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held four (4) meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

#### **Related Party Transactions**

The Board has adopted a written policy setting forth procedures for the review, approval and monitoring of transactions involving the Company and any related persons (directors, nominees for directors, 5% security holders, and executive officers or their immediate family members). Under the policy (and the Audit Committee Charter), the Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving all transactions involving the Company in which any related person has a direct or indirect interest, regardless of amount. The Audit Committee intends to approve only those related party transactions that are on terms no less favorable to the Company than could be obtained from independent third parties and are otherwise in, or are not inconsistent with, the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

In furtherance of this policy, the Company's Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all Directors, officers and employees, which generally requires that any transaction or opportunity that may constitute a conflict of interest, be reported to management so that it may be reviewed and avoided, if possible. The Code of Conduct is available on the Company's web site at <u>www.yorkwater.com</u> under "Investor Relations", then "Corporate Governance".

As noted on page 9 under Director Independence, the Company has a relationship with the law firm in which Mr. Gang is a principal. Because the legal services provided by the law firm in 2013 were greater than the SEC threshold of \$120,000, this is a reportable related party transaction. The Company primarily deals with attorneys other than Mr. Gang on regulatory matters. Mr. Gang does not have a direct material interest in the payment of such fees, but has an indirect interest as a member of the law firm. His indirect interest is also immaterial.

## Communication with the Board of Directors

Shareholders who wish to communicate with the Board of Directors or specific individual Directors may do so by directing a written request addressed to such Directors or Director in care of the Secretary of The York Water Company, at the address appearing on the first page of this proxy statement. Communication(s) directed to members of the Board of Directors who are not non-management Directors will be relayed to the intended Board member(s) except to the extent that it is deemed unnecessary or inappropriate to do so pursuant to the procedures established by a

majority of the independent Directors. Communications directed to non-management Directors will be relayed to the intended Board member(s) except to the extent that doing so would be contrary to the instructions of the non-management Directors. Any communication so withheld will nevertheless be made available to any non-management Director who wishes to review it.

#### Executive Sessions of the Board

The independent directors of the Board schedule regular executive sessions of independent directors in which they meet without management participation. The Chairman of the Board leads these sessions.

#### Stock Ownership

Directors are required under the bylaws of the Company to own at least one share of stock. As part of the Company's Securities Trades Policy, directors, officers and selected employees are prohibited from trading in Company securities on a short-term basis, engaging in short sales, purchasing Company stock on margin, buying or selling puts or calls, pledging securities, or otherwise engaging in any type of hedging transactions involving Company securities.

#### Code of Ethics

The Company's Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all Directors, officers and employees. The Code of Conduct constitutes a "code of ethics" as required by Item 406 of Regulation S-K. There were no waivers of the Code made for any Director, officer or employee during 2013. A copy of the Code of Conduct was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as Exhibit 14 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. The Code of Conduct is also available, free of charge, on the Company's website, <u>www.yorkwater.com</u>, under "Investor Relations: then "Corporate Governance". The Company intends to disclose material amendments to, or Director, officer and employee waivers from, the Code of Conduct, if any, on its website, or by Form 8-K to the extent required.

## REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee reviews the Company's financial reporting process on behalf of the Board, including reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Forms 10-Q and 10-K, the Company's internal control process and releases of earnings. In addition, the Committee selects, subject to shareholder ratification, the Company's independent registered public accounting firm and evaluates the performance of the firm.

Management is responsible for the Company's internal controls and the financial reporting process. The independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for performing an integrated audit of the Company's financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB) (United States) and to issue reports thereon. The Committee's responsibility is to monitor and oversee these processes.

In this context, the Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with management; has discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm (ParenteBeard) the matters required to be discussed by Auditing Standards No. 16, as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board; has received the written disclosures and the letter required by the PCAOB regarding independence communications; and has discussed ParenteBeard's independence with the firm and management.

Based upon the Committee's discussions with management and ParenteBeard and the Committee's review of the representations of management and ParenteBeard's report to the Committee, the Committee recommended that the Board include the audited financial statements in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 for filing with the SEC.

Chairperson Ernest J. Waters Steven R. Rasmussen, CPA Member Member

## PROPOSAL 2 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has approved the appointment of ParenteBeard LLC, as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit the financial statements of the Company for the year 2014. ParenteBeard LLC audited the Company's financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. There have been no disagreements between the Company and ParenteBeard LLC concerning the Company's financial statements. It is intended that, unless otherwise specified by the shareholders, votes will be cast pursuant to the proxy hereby solicited in favor of the appointment of ParenteBeard LLC.

Audit fees and all professional services to be rendered by ParenteBeard LLC are approved by the Company's Audit Committee. The Board considers the possible effect on auditors' independence of providing non-audit services prior to the service being rendered, but the Board does not anticipate significant non-audit services will be rendered during 2014.

The following table presents fees for services provided by ParenteBeard LLC for 2013 and 2012:

	<u>2013</u>	<u>2012</u>
Audit Fees (1)	135,264	127,693
Audit Related Fees (2)	16,000	19,600
Tax Fees (3)	10,436	9,515
All Other Fees	-	-
	161,700	156,808

Professional services rendered for 2013 and 2012 include (a) the audit of the Company's annual financial statements, (b) the review of the financial statements included in the Company's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and (c) the audit of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. In addition, 2013 fees include consent procedures in connection with registration statements relating to the Company's stock plans.

(2) Audit related fees include limited scope audits of the Company's 401(k) and general and administrative pension plans in 2013 and 2012.

(3) Tax fees include preparation of the federal income tax return and other tax matters.

The Audit Committee approves in advance any audit or non-audit services provided by outside auditors. During 2013 and 2012, there were no exceptions to the Audit Committee's pre-approval requirements.

Representatives of ParenteBeard LLC are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting. Representatives of ParenteBeard LLC will have an opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Adoption of this proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by all shareholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. It is understood that even if the selection of ParenteBeard LLC is ratified by the shareholders, the Audit Committee, in its discretion, may direct the appointment of a new independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if the Audit Committee determines that such a change would be in

the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" this proposal.

#### COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Name

Our Named Executive Officers. This section discusses the compensation we paid to our named executive officers (as defined by SEC rules) in 2013. Our named executive officers are:

Title

Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E.	President, Chief Executive Officer
Kathleen M. Miller	Chief Financial Officer
Joseph T. Hand	Chief Operating Officer
Bruce C. McIntosh	Vice President-Human Resources
John H. Strine	Vice President-Operations

#### COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

General Philosophy. The goal of our compensation program is to attract, motivate and retain our executive officers who are key to the success of our Company. We compensate our named executive officers through a combination of base salary and cash incentives designed to be competitive with comparable employers and to align management's incentives with the long-term interests of our customers and shareholders. Our compensation setting process consists of establishing a base salary for each named executive officer and designing an annual cash incentive (currently up to 5% of salary) for such executive to reward the achievement of specific operational goals. We only incentivize operational goals that add value for both our customers and our shareholders, such as increasing efficiency, ensuring a safe, adequate supply of water, reducing costs, improving customer service and expanding our service territory in order to gain economies of scale and spread fixed costs over a larger number of customers. Payouts for incentives that are not in the long-term interest of customers may not be considered prudent, and therefore, may not be recoverable through water rates granted by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission.

Base Salary. To assist us in establishing base salary in 2013, the Compensation Committee participated in a survey conducted by SAJE, a nationally recognized consulting firm, to provide data regarding the compensation of senior management at York and at seven comparable water utilities. These comparables included Aqua America, Inc., Aquarion Water Company, Beckley Water Company, Middlesex Water Company, Pennichuck Corporation, San Jose Water Company and United Water. SAJE also determined relative measures of the relationship between the size and compensation of the companies included in the survey. SAJE provided no opinions or recommendations regarding our compensation package. Outside of the survey, SAJE provided no other services, and no other compensation consultants were engaged or consulted by the Board of Directors, the Compensation Committee, or management for any purpose.

Based upon an analysis of the base salary levels and trend lines developed using regression analysis reflected in the survey, we establish base salaries for our named executive officers. The average base salary of the President and Chief Executive Officer and other Named Executive Officers is currently below the 25<sup>th</sup> percentile of the seven comparable investor-owned water utilities. We have chosen this level based on our relative revenues, customer connections, employees and utility plant, and due to the relatively low level of complexity of the Company's business and operations as compared to many of the comparable investor-owned water utilities. We are mainly a pure regulated water utility, with a small contract billing operation and a small wastewater operation, while some of the comparables also have a number of wastewater and other more significant non-regulated businesses. We are a stand-alone company with no subsidiaries, parent or holding company. We have one filtration plant and serve a relatively smaller number of customers in one state. Many of the comparables serve in multiple states and have many subsidiaries, and many filtration plants. In addition, there are issues specific to certain parts of the country such as

water availability and regulatory environment that challenge some water utilities more than others. Finally, the cost of living in the geographic area in which our operations are located is lower than some of the comparables. 14

The base salary level of named executive officers will be reviewed annually to determine if the 25<sup>th</sup> percentile continues to be appropriate based on changes in our statistics relative to comparable companies, our product line, the current regulatory environment, changes in water quality standards, competition for competent management and growth in our service territory, as well as other relevant factors.

In addition to the SAJE survey, the Compensation Committee considered available compensation information on other investor-owned water companies that did not take part in the survey including American Water, California Water, Connecticut Water, American States Water and Artesian Water, as well as local public companies where information was available. The Compensation Committee also considers subjective factors such as the value of the position to the Company, the performance of the executive and the length of service in the current position and with the Company when determining base salary levels.

Bonuses and Equity Compensation. We do not provide bonuses or equity compensation in the form of stock options to senior management. We do, however, offer an Employee Stock Purchase Plan to all employees, including senior management, on the same terms. Employees may purchase stock from the Company on a quarterly basis, at a 5% discount to market. Annual purchases under this plan may not exceed 10% of the employee's regular salary.

Cash Incentives. Our practice is to use cash awards to incentivize our senior managers to create value for our customers and shareholders. To that end, we adopted a Cash Incentive Plan in 2005, pursuant to which our Compensation Committee sets annual performance objectives and target incentive payment amounts. All of our supervisors and managers participate in the plan, including our named executive officers.

The plan is administered by the Compensation Committee, which has complete and final authority to, among other things, select participants, to determine the goals and circumstances under which incentive awards are granted, to grant awards and to construe and interpret the Plan. Decisions of the Compensation Committee with respect to the administration and interpretation of the Plan are final, conclusive and binding upon all participants.

The Compensation Committee has discretion to determine all performance objectives. In addition, the Committee may specify that any incentive award be conditioned upon achievement or satisfaction of business criteria or other measures of performance. One or more of the following business criteria or other measures of performance may be used by the Committee: (1) growth in revenues or assets; (2) earnings from operations; (3) net income or earnings per common share; (4) return on investment or return on equity; (5) stock price or shareholder return; and (6) strategic business criteria, consisting of meeting specified water quality standards, environmental or safety standards, affordability of rates and customer satisfaction standards. The Compensation Committee may exercise its discretion to eliminate, reduce or increase the amounts payable as incentive, subject to such business criteria or other measures of performance.

Under the plan, annual performance objectives are established no later than ninety (90) days after the beginning of any annual incentive period, which is usually a calendar year. Each performance objective carries with it a score of five (5) points. No points are awarded for partial achievement of performance objectives. Incentive awards are granted only if an overall score of seventy-five (75) percent of the available performance objective points are achieved. The Compensation Committee believes that achieving performance objectives should be the shared responsibility of management. Accordingly, if an overall score of seventy-five (75) percent of the available performance objective points is achieved, all participants receive their target incentive awards. If an overall score of less than seventy-five (75) percent of the available performance objectives an award.

The Compensation Committee set the performance objectives and target incentive awards for 2013 on January 28, 2013. For 2013, the Compensation Committee determined that the amount of the target cash incentive award would

be 5% of the base salary as of December 31, 2013 for each management employee, including named executive officers. The Committee selected 5% as the target cash incentive award for 2013, and for all of the previous years since the plan's inception in 2005, after considering various factors. One such factor was the range of other benefits already provided by the Company. Another factor was the comparison of the Company's total salary and benefit package to the compensation packages paid by other comparable companies. A third factor was the level of motivation needed to achieve the established goals of the 15

Company. Finally, the Compensation Committee considered how the plan would be perceived by the regulators, customers and shareholders. All of these factors together contributed to the Committee's decision to keep the target incentive relatively low as compared to other companies.

The 2013 performance objectives as determined by the Compensation Committee were, among other things: replace and reline pipe; refinance debt; improve customer online access; improve the payment agreement process; initiate an improved customer service line inspection program; expand the service line protection program; implement an improved stream crossing monitoring program; complete and successfully resolve a major rate filing; implement source water protection plans; upgrade filters at the water treatment plant; review insurance coverage options; increase paperless billing customers; and develop improved labor-management and safety training programs.

On January 27, 2014, the Compensation Committee determined that our management had achieved eighty-one (81) percent of the performance objectives listed above for 2013, as well as the set business criterion for 2013, which was, earnings per common share of \$0.73. The Committee awarded the named executive officers the amounts set forth in the 2013 Grants of Plan Based Awards Table below, which was the target incentive amount for each named executive officer.

On January 27, 2014, the Compensation Committee determined performance objectives and target incentive amounts to be awarded under the plan for 2014. The performance objectives are, among other things: replace and reline pipe; enroll in the Partnership for Safe Water Program; implement tax repair methodology; implement distribution system efficiencies; promote the service line protection program; improve water treatment efficiencies ; review insurance coverage options; implement source water protection plans; improve safety processes and procedures; and increase paperless billing customers. The target incentive amounts for 2014, as determined by the Compensation Committee, are 5% of named executive officers' base salary as of December 31, 2014 and the business criterion for 2014 is earnings per common share.

Clawback Policy. In the event of a material misstatement of financial results requiring restatement, the Board, or appropriate committee thereof, will review all incentive compensation paid to senior executives on the basis of having met specific performance targets during the restatement period. If the material misstatement resulted from fraud, negligence or intentional misconduct, the Board or committee will take, in its discretion, such action as it deems necessary to recover the compensation paid, remedy the misconduct, and prevent its recurrence. The Board will, to the extent permitted by applicable law, to the extent it is reasonable to do so (e.g. the expense of recovering the compensation does not exceed the amount recovered), and to the extent that the amount earned under restated financial results is lower than the amount originally awarded, require reimbursement from the senior executive engaged in the misconduct that caused the need for the restatement. The required reimbursement will be the amount paid in excess of the amount earned under restated financial results. In addition, the Board may dismiss the senior executive, authorize legal action, or take such other action to enforce the officer's obligations to the Company as it deems appropriate.

Severance Benefits. Other than Change in Control payments described below, we do not provide severance benefits to employees as part of our compensation program.

Retirement Plans. We provide a traditional defined benefit pension plan covering employees hired before May 1, 2010. Named executive officers are entitled to benefits under the defined benefit pension plan upon retirement after the age of 55 on the same terms as other employees. The pension benefit is based on the years of service multiplied by the sum of \$19.25 and 1.50% of that portion of the final average monthly earnings which are in excess of \$400. The final average monthly earnings are the average of the employee's earnings for the highest consecutive sixty (60) complete months during the last one hundred and twenty (120) complete months immediately prior to the date the

pension benefit calculation is made. Normal (full) retirement benefits are payable at age 65, or at age 62 with twenty-five years of service. Employees who terminate their employment prior to the age of 55 may elect to collect reduced benefits upon attaining age 55, or full benefits at age 62 or 65 as applicable. Early retirement benefits are reduced by 5/9 of a percent for each of the first 60 months by which the early retirement date precedes the normal retirement date, and 5/18 of a percent for each month in excess of 60 months by which the early retirement date precedes the normal retirement date.

We also provide a supplemental retirement program, which provides senior management with a retirement benefit after the age of 55 in addition to the defined benefit pension. The supplemental retirement program is designed to encourage senior management to stay with the Company until retirement. Generally, supplemental retirement benefits are made available to senior management and are payable to the executive or his or her beneficiary, after retirement, over 15 years beginning no earlier than age 60. The annual benefit payable under the supplemental retirement program is calculated by multiplying the number of years of eligible service subsequent to December 31, 1983 (plan commencement date) by a predetermined annual retirement benefit unit as shown below:

Mr. Hines	\$1,441
Ms. Miller	1,394
Mr. Hand	1,961
Mr. McIntosh	1,754
Mr. Strine	2,778

The estimated annual benefit payable to Mr. Hines at normal retirement age under the supplemental retirement program is \$53,333. The estimated annual benefit payable to Ms. Miller, Mr. Hand, Mr. McIntosh and Mr. Strine at normal retirement age under the supplemental retirement program is \$33,333. Benefits are paid monthly. Named executive officers who terminate their employment prior to the age of 55 forfeit their supplemental retirement benefits. If a named executive officer were to die before distribution of his or her supplemental retirement benefit has commenced, his or her beneficiary would receive a death benefit of \$500,000, with the exception of Mr. Hines' beneficiary, who would receive \$800,000.

Deferred Compensation. We also provide a deferred compensation program to management. The deferred compensation program permits managers and executives to defer up to 5% of salary over an eight (8) year period, with the Company matching the deferment up to 2.50% of salary. Mr. Hand is the only named executive officer currently deferring salary. All other named executive officers have completed their deferrals. In 2013, Mr. Hand received an annual matching benefit of \$2,775. Annually, the Company credits participants' deferred compensation balances with interest on the existing credit balance at a rate selected by the Company, currently equal to the December 31 rate of Moody's AAA Corporate Bond Yield. This rate amounted to 4.57% for 2013. Our deferred compensation program does not provide above-market or preferential earnings. 2013 credited earnings are shown in the "2013 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation" table. Payouts from this plan on retirement, termination, disability or death are described in detail below in the narrative discussion accompanying the 2013 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table.

401(k). Our named executive officers may participate in our 401(k) savings plan on the same terms as other employees. We provide an annual maximum matching contribution of \$2,800 per employee, for participating employees hired before May 1, 2010. All named executives received the maximum matching contribution during 2013. Employees hired after May 1, 2010 are eligible for an enhanced 401(k) plan. None of our named executive officers are benefiting under the enhanced plan.

Change in Control. Our senior management has built York Water into the successful business that it is today. We believe that it is important to protect them in the event of a change of control and to protect the Company from the distractions senior managers often suffer as a result of the uncertainties that frequently surround changes in control. Accordingly, we entered into amended and restated agreements with each of our senior managers that provide for certain payments upon changes of control in consideration of such senior managers agreeing not to compete with us for a period of time following the terminated in connection with a change in control. In certain circumstances, however, payments may be made to senior managers who do not terminate their employment for one year following a change in control. These payments incentivize our senior managers to continue their employment amid the

uncertainty that often follows changes in control and thereby promotes stability for the Company during such times. Change in control benefits are paid in lump sum and are based on a multiple of base salary and cash incentive compensation. In the event of a change of control, we also continue health and other insurance benefits for up to one year depending on circumstances. The agreements are valid for an initial term of five years, and renew automatically for one-year periods after the first five years. The agreements terminate upon the employee reaching age 65 or terminating employment

with the Company. The Company must provide 90 days notice to terminate the agreements. These agreements are described in more detail below under the heading "Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control."

Perquisites and Other Benefits. The primary perquisite for named executive officers is the use of company vehicles for personal benefit. The most common personal use of company vehicles by senior management is commuting to and from work. No named executive officer receives perquisites valued in the aggregate at \$10,000 or more. Named executive officers also participate in York Water's other benefit plans on the same terms as other employees. These plans include medical and health insurance, life insurance and employee stock purchase plan (ESPP). Under the ESPP, full-time employees with at least 90 days of service are eligible to purchase company stock through payroll deduction, up to 10% of their regular salary, at a 5% discount from fair market value. The Compensation Committee considers the ESPP as a contributing factor to hiring and retaining employees, and as a way of aligning employee interests with those of shareholders.

Board Process. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approves all compensation and awards to executive officers, which include the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and four vice presidents. The Compensation Committee reviews the performance and compensation of the Chief Executive and, following discussions with that individual, and a review of the data provided by SAJE and other available data, establishes his compensation level. For the remaining executive officers, the Chief Executive Officer makes recommendations to the Compensation Committee, based on SAJE and other available data, which are subject to final approval by the committee. With respect to the cash incentive awards, the Compensation Committee grants cash incentives when warranted.

Shareholder Say-on-Pay Votes. The Company provides its shareholders with the opportunity to cast an advisory vote on executive compensation (a "say-on-pay proposal") every three years. At the Company's annual meeting of shareholders held in May 2011, a substantial majority of the votes cast on the three-year say-on-pay proposal at that meeting were voted in favor of the proposal. The Compensation Committee believes this affirms shareholders' support of the Company's executive compensation program, and did not change its program in 2013. Executive compensation will be voted upon by shareholders during this proxy season. The Compensation Committee will consider the outcome of the Company's say-on-pay vote when making future compensation decisions for the named executive officers.

## COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the foregoing Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management, and based on that review and discussion, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement.

Ernest J. Waters George Hay Kain III Robert P. Newcomer Chairman Member Member

## COMPENSATION RISK ASSESSMENT

The Compensation Committee reviewed the Company's compensation policies and practices for all employees (including non-executive officers) covering base salaries and wages, deferred compensation, incentive plans and change in control agreements in order to assess the inherent risks involved.

Considering all of the elements of the various compensation plans and the fact that the Company has no competing segments or divisions, the Compensation Committee concluded that the Company's compensation policies and practices did not incentivize excessive risk-taking that would have a material adverse effect on the Company. 18

## COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The members of our Compensation Committee are named in the "Board Committees and Functions" section of this proxy statement. None of the members of the Compensation Committee is or has ever been an officer or employee of the Company. In addition, during the last fiscal year, none of our executive officers served as a member of the board of directors or the compensation committee of any other entity that has one or more executive officers serving on our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee.

## SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth information concerning compensation paid by the Company to named executive officers or accrued by the Company for the named executive officers in 2013, 2012 and 2011.

			Change in Pension Valu & Nonqualified		
		Non-Equity	Deferred	All Other	
Name and		· ·	n Compensation	nCompensatio	n
Principal Position	<u>Year Salary</u>	<u>Compensatio</u>	nEarnings (1)	<u>(2)</u>	<u>Total</u>
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E.			\$(66,179)	\$10,906	\$227,647
President, Chief	2012261,768	13,200	251,434	7,702	534,104
<b>Executive Officer</b>	2011253,757	12,850	296,192	6,197	568,996
Kathleen M. Miller	2013152.626	7,700	(15,672)	4,779	149,433
Chief Financial	2012148,144	7,475	113,772	4,251	273,642
Officer	2011142,794	7,250	125,641	4,103	279,788
Joseph T. Hand	2013147,033	7,500	89,655	8,956	253,144
Chief Operating	2012138,417	7,050	19,308	7,728	172,503
Officer	2011130,794	6,650	16,796	7,269	161,509
Bruce C. McIntosh	2013116,828	5,875	(7,042)	5,668	121,329
Vice President-	2012114,164	5,750	112,977	5,222	238,113
Human Resources	2011111,383	5,600	134,623	5,376	256,982
John H. Strine	2013114,900	5,808	11,546	6,880	139,134
Vice President-	2012110,469	5,600	170,939	6,597	293,605
Operations	2011105,682	5,350	189,366	6,109	306,507
_					

Amounts presented represent the sum of the change in the actuarial present value of the named executive officer's accumulated benefit under the Company's defined benefit pension plan and the change in the present value of the named executive officer's benefit under the Company's supplemental executive retirement plan. No above-market or preferential earnings are paid on deferred compensation.

Includes Company contributions to the named executive officer's 401(k) account, credited earnings and Company (2) contributions for non-qualified deferred compensation, personal use of company vehicles, and a 5% discount on stock purchased through the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

19

### 2013 GRANTS OF PLAN BASED AWARDS

Non-Equity Incentive Awards. As described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis under the heading "Cash Incentives," our practice is to award cash incentives based upon the achievement of diverse performance objectives. The performance objectives are established annually by the Compensation Committee, and are designed to recognize and reward the achievement of our goals and the creation of value for our customers and shareholders. The following table sets forth awards granted to our named executive officers in 2013 pursuant to our incentive plan.

Name and Principal Position	Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive <u>Plan</u> <u>Awards</u> <u>Target</u>
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E. President, Chief Executive Officer	\$13,595
Kathleen M. Miller Chief Financial Officer	7,700
Joseph T. Hand Chief Operating Officer	7,500
Bruce C. McIntosh Vice President-Human Resources	5,875
John H. Strine Vice President-Operations	5,808

The awards appearing in this table also appear in the Summary Compensation Table.

Awards are subject to the Company's clawback policy.

We do not grant equity incentive plan awards.

#### 2013 PENSION BENEFITS

The table below sets forth the present value of accumulated benefits payable to each named executive officer, including the number of years of credited service, under the Company's General and Administrative Pension Plan (a defined benefit pension plan) and its Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. Detailed information on these plans can be found in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above, under the heading "Retirement Plans."

Name and Principal Position	<u>Plan Name</u>	Credited	fPresent Value of Accumulated <u>Benefit</u>
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E. President, Chief Executive Officer	General and Administrative Pension Plan	24	\$793,949
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E. President, Chief Executive Officer	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	24	325,708
Kathleen M. Miller Chief Financial Officer	General and Administrative Pension Plan	18	340,914
Kathleen M. Miller Chief Financial Officer	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	10	120,595
Joseph T. Hand Chief Operating Officer	General and Administrative Pension Plan	6	80,017
Joseph T. Hand Chief Operating Officer	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	4	56,575
Bruce C. McIntosh Vice President-Human Resources	General and Administrative Pension Plan	17	328,043
Bruce C. McIntosh Vice President-Human Resources	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	15	343,568
John H. Strine Vice President-Operations	General and Administrative Pension Plan	37	700,619
John H. Strine Vice President-Operations	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	4	103,855

All assumptions made in quantifying the present value of the accumulated benefits to the named executive officers under these plans are described in Note 6 to the Company's Financial Statements included in our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The present values are based upon a 4.65% discount rate. There were no payments to named executives made under these plans during the last fiscal year. Future payouts under these plans are described in more

detail in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis under the heading "Retirement Plans". 21

#### 2013 NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The table set forth below presents contributions, earnings and the balance at year-end (including future tax savings) for the accounts of our named executive officers under our deferred compensation program that is described in more detail in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis under the heading "Deferred Compensation." Company contributions and earnings are reported in the "All Other Compensation" column of the Summary Compensation Table. The future tax savings amounts included in the balance column below have not been included in the Summary Compensation Table in any year.

Name and Principal Position		Company Contributions in Last Fiscal <u>Year</u>	Farnings	e Aggregate Balance at Last Fiscal <u>Year-End</u>
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E., President, Chief Executive Officer			\$2,748	\$105,828
Kathleen M. Miller, Chief Financial Officer			1,432	55,149
Joseph T. Hand, Chief Operating Officer	\$5,550	\$2,775	1,970	75,869
Bruce C. McIntosh, Vice President-Human Resources			1,434	55,215
John H. Strine, Vice President-Operations			2,523	97,179

#### PAYOUT OF DEFERRED COMPENSATION ACCOUNTS

Payouts upon Retirement. Following a named executive officer's retirement, a monthly retirement benefit will be paid to him or her for 120 months. This benefit will be equal to a percentage of his or her deferred income account immediately prior to retirement divided by the following factor (1 minus the corporate federal and state income tax rate for the Company immediately prior to retirement). Assuming a federal income tax rate of 34% and a state income tax rate of 9.99% for 2013, and assuming all named executive officers were eligible for retirement as of December 31, 2013, the named executive officers would receive the monthly benefits in the table that follows the next paragraph. The Company does not gross up the deferred compensation payout, but rather passes on the tax benefit the Company will realize when death benefit proceeds are received under corporate-owned life insurance policies which are in place in order to reimburse the Company for the costs of the plan.

Payouts upon Disability. If a named executive officer becomes disabled before his or her deferred income account has been distributed, a monthly retirement benefit will be paid to him or her for 120 months. This benefit will be equal to a percentage of his or her deferred income account immediately prior to the date he or she became disabled divided by the following factor (1 minus the corporate federal and state income tax rate for the Company immediately prior to the

date he or she became disabled). Assuming a federal income tax rate of 34% and a state income tax rate of 9.99% for 2013, and assuming each named executive officer became disabled as of December 31, 2013, such named executive officer would receive the monthly benefits in the table that follows. Once again, the Company is not grossing up the benefit, but rather passing on tax savings it will realize in the future. 22

Name and Principal Position	Deferred Income Account Percentage	Monthly Retirement Amount
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E., President, Chief Executive Officer	1.110%	\$1,175
Kathleen M. Miller, Chief Financial Officer	0.833%	460
Joseph T. Hand, Chief Operating Officer	0.833%	632
Bruce C. McIntosh, Vice President-Human Resources	0.833%	460
John H. Strine, Vice President-Operations	2.036%	1,979

Payouts upon Termination of Employment. If a named executive officer's employment with the Company is terminated other than by death or disability before he or she is eligible for retirement, the amount of his or her contributions, without the Company's matching contribution, without accumulated interest credited to the deferred income account, and without the tax benefit, shall be distributed to such named executive officer immediately upon his or her termination in a lump sum. Assuming each named executive officer were terminated as of December 31, 2013, such named executive officer would be entitled to receive the following lump sum payment:

Name and Principal Position	Lump Su Payment Upon Terminat	
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E., President, Chief Executive Officer	\$18,238	
Kathleen M. Miller, Chief Financial Officer	10,216	
Joseph T. Hand, Chief Operating Officer	26,576	
Bruce C. McIntosh, Vice President-Human Resources	55,215	(1)
John H. Strine, Vice President-Operations	19,156	

(1) Assumes Mr. McIntosh was not terminated for cause. If he were terminated for cause as of December 31, 2013, Mr. McIntosh would have been entitled to receive a lump sum payment of \$10,021.

The named executive officer deferrals have previously been reported in the salary column of the Summary Compensation Table in the year in which they were earned. 23

Payouts upon Death. If a named executive officer were to die before distribution of his or her deferred income account has commenced, his or her beneficiary would receive a death benefit in an amount equal to the higher of \$150,000, or the named executive officer's deferred income account immediately prior to his or her death divided by the following factor (1 minus the corporate federal and state income tax rate for the Company immediately prior to the date of death). The death benefit determined as above will be paid to beneficiaries in a lump sum. Assuming death benefits for each named executive officer became payable as of December 31, 2013, such named executive officer's respective beneficiaries would be entitled to receive the following lump sum payments:

Name and Principal Position	Beneficiary Death Benefit (\$)
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E., President, Chief Executive Officer	150,000
Kathleen M. Miller, Chief Financial Officer	150,000
Joseph T. Hand, Chief Operating Officer	150,000
Bruce C. McIntosh, Vice President-Human Resources	150,000
John H. Strine, Vice President-Operations	150,000

## POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR A CHANGE IN CONTROL

Description of Change in Control Agreements. We have entered into Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreements with each named executive officer that provides for payments to them under certain circumstances in connection with a change in control in consideration of such named executive officers agreeing not to compete with us for a period of time following the termination of their employment.

Under all agreements, generally a "change in control" will occur if:

Any person or affiliated group (with limited exceptions) becomes the beneficial owner in the aggregate of 50 percent or more of all of our voting securities;

A majority of our Board of Directors is involuntarily removed or defeated for re-election to our Board of Directors (for example, as a result of a proxy contest);

We are party to a merger or reorganization pursuant to which the holders of our voting securities prior to such •transaction become the holders of 50 percent or less of the voting securities of the new merged or reorganized company; or

•The Company is liquidated or dissolved, or all of its assets are sold to a third party.

In each circumstance described above, our Board of Directors may make a determination that the circumstances do not warrant the implementation of the provisions of the agreement, and in such case, the change in control will not trigger any payments under the agreements.

All payments under the agreements are triggered by the occurrence of a change in control, and most payments also require that the relevant senior manager's employment also be terminated. The amounts of payments to our named executive officers under these agreements vary depending on the timing of the change in control and the timing and manner of the termination of employment. Generally, the manner of termination is divided into four categories.

A "for cause" termination results from:

·misappropriation of funds or any act of common law fraud;

·habitual insobriety or substance abuse;

·conviction of a felony or any crime involving moral turpitude;

·willful misconduct or gross negligence by the senior manager in the performance of his duties;

·the willful failure of the senior manager to perform a material function of his duties; or

·the senior manager engaging in a conflict of interest or other breach of fiduciary duty.

A "good reason" termination occurs when the senior manager terminates his own employment following a change in control and after one or more of the following has occurred:

·the Company has breached the change in control agreement;

the Company has significantly reduced the authority, duties or responsibilities of the senior manager or reduced his base compensation or annual bonus compensation opportunity;

the Company has reduced the senior manager from the employment grade or officer positions which he or she holds; or

the Company has transferred the senior manager, without his or her express written consent, to a location that is more than 50 miles from his or her principal place of business immediately preceding the change of control.

A voluntary termination is the termination by the senior manager of his or her own employment under circumstances that would not be a "good reason" termination. Examples are ordinary retirement or leaving the Company to seek other job opportunities.

An involuntary termination is a termination in connection with a change in control that is not a "for cause" termination, a good reason termination or a voluntary termination.

Payouts under Change in Control Agreements. Under the agreements, all named executive officers are entitled to payment in the case of an involuntary termination or a good reason termination within some time period surrounding a change in control (generally six months prior to or one year following a change in control). Payments are paid in lump sum and are based on a multiple of base salary and cash incentive compensation earned by the named executive officer in the preceding 12 months. We call this amount "base pay." Additionally, Messrs. Hines, Hand, McIntosh, and Strine, and Ms. Miller are entitled to payment of "stay bonuses" if they remain employed by us for one year following a change in control, and smaller stay bonuses if they remain employed for at least three months following a change in control. Finally, our named executive officers are entitled to have their health and welfare benefits continue for periods of up to one year following the termination of their employment (subject to such benefits terminating or such named executive officer becoming covered by the benefit plans of another employer).

The table below sets forth the relevant base pay multiples, lump sum payout amounts and the value of continued benefits our named executive officers would receive under various circumstances under their change in control agreements. For the purposes of this table, we have assumed that a change in control occurred on December 31, 2013.

		Lump Sum	Health and Othe Insurance	
Name	Multiple of Base Pay	2	Benefits (1)	<u>Total</u>
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E.				
Involuntary termination or good reason termination.	2.99 times	\$853,629	\$8,361	\$861,990
Voluntary termination more than 3 months but less than one year after a change in control.	e .25 times	71,374	8,361	79,735
Continuing employment for one year after a change in control.	: .5 times	142,747	8,361	151,108
Kathleen M. Miller				
Involuntary termination or good reason termination.	.5 times	80,850	9,706	90,556
Voluntary termination more than 3 months but less than one year after a change in control.	e .25 times	40,425	9,706	50,131
Continuing employment for one year after a change in control.	: .5 times	80,850	9,706	90,556
Joseph T. Hand				
Involuntary termination or good reason termination.	.5 times	78,750	396	79,146
Voluntary termination more than 3 months but less than one year after a change in control.	e .25 times	39,375	396	39,771

Continuing employment for .5 times 78,750 396 79,146 one year after a change in control.

26

<u>Name</u> Bruce C. McIntosh	Multiple of Base Pay	-	Health and Othe Insurance tBenefits ( <u>1)</u>	
Involuntary termination or good reason termination.	.5 times	\$61,685	\$8,361	\$70,046
Voluntary termination more than 3 months but less than one year after a change in control.	e .25 times	30,843	8,361	39,204
Continuing employment for one year after a change in control.	5 times	61,685	8,361	70,046
John H. Strine				
Involuntary termination or good reason termination.	.5 times	60,980	3,936	64,916
Voluntary termination more than 3 months but less than one year after a change in control.	e .25 times	30,490	3,936	34,426
Continuing employment for one year after a change in control.	5 times	60,980	3,936	64,916
(1) The value of health bence estimated rates applicable u Omnibus Budget Reconcilia employees.	nder the Co	ompreher	nsive	

Payment of the lump sum payments under the change in control agreements is contingent upon the named executive officer executing a standard release. The change in control agreements also contain non-competition provisions that generally require that, a named executive officer will not, while he or she is employed by us and for one year following the termination of his or her employment by us:

•

participate in the ownership, management, operation, control or financing of, or be connected as an officer, director, employee, partner, principal, agent, representative, consultant or otherwise with or use or permit his or her name to be used in connection with, any business or enterprise engaged in by us within our franchised territory; •solicit or attempt to convert any account or customer of the Company to another supplier; or •solicit or attempt to hire any employee of the Company.

Any breach of this non-competition agreement can result in damages being awarded to the Company, including the amount of one-half of any lump sum payments described above.

Other Payouts. The named executive officers will also be entitled to the payouts of their pension and supplemental retirement accounts upon retirement and payout of their deferred compensation accounts upon termination of their employment with us.

27

Using the assumptions described in Note 6 to the Company's Financial Statements included in the 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K, and assuming that all of our named executive officers remain with the Company until reaching age 55 (or, for those who are currently older than age 55, assuming they retired as of December 31, 2013) our named executive officers have earned monthly benefits under the pension plan and supplemental retirement plan as follows:

Name	<u>Plan Name</u>	Monthly <u>Benefit</u>
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E.	General and Administrative Pension Plan	\$7,731
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E.	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	2,883
Kathleen M. Miller	General and Administrative Pension Plan	3,507
Kathleen M. Miller	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	1,161
Joseph T. Hand	General and Administrative Pension Plan	1,072
Joseph T. Hand	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	654
Bruce C. McIntosh	General and Administrative Pension Plan	2,735
Bruce C. McIntosh	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	2,193
John H. Strine	General and Administrative Pension Plan	5,650
John H. Strine	Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan	926

Our named executive officers will also be entitled to be paid the amounts described in the narrative discussion accompanying the 2013 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table above in the manner described in that section. 28

#### 2013 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Director	Fees Earned <u>Paid in</u> <u>Cash</u>
Cynthia A. Dotzel, CPA	\$29,673
John L. Finlayson	28,033
Michael W. Gang, Esq.	26,388
George W. Hodges, Chairman of the Board	31,368
George Hay Kain III	22,953
Robert P. Newcomer	1,292
Jeffrey S. Osman	23,078
Steven R. Rasmussen, CPA	26,553
Ernest J. Waters	26,753

Director Fees Earned. In consideration of the services they provide to us, directors who are not regular full-time employees are entitled to receive a retainer of \$15,500 per year, payable quarterly. In addition to the annual retainer, Board and Committee members are entitled to the fees in the table below for each meeting they attend. Directors who are also current employees of the Company receive no additional compensation for Board service.

				Nomination	
Board		Executive			Compensation
	<u>board</u>	<b>Committee</b>	<b>Committee</b>	Governance	Committee
				<u>Committee</u>	
Chairperson	\$1,750	\$1,135	\$1,690	\$1,030	\$1,030
Directors/Members	\$770	\$845	\$900	\$795	\$795

No perquisites are provided to Directors.

Mr. Finlayson retired under the Company's mandatory retirement policy for directors on March 14, 2014. Mr. Newcomer was elected to the Board of Directors on November 25, 2013, effective December 1, 2013, to fill a vacancy due to the 2012 mandatory retirement of Thomas C. Norris, and in anticipation of Mr. Finlayson's retirement.

There were 8 Board of Directors' Meetings during calendar year 2013. All Directors attended at least 88% of the scheduled Board of Directors and committee meetings. In addition, all Directors other than Mr. Gang attended the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

29

## PROPOSAL 3 TO APPROVE, BY NON-BINDING VOTE, THE COMPENSATION OF THE NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

In accordance with Section 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we are asking shareholders to approve the following advisory resolution at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders:

"RESOLVED, that the compensation paid to the Company's named executive officers, as disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, compensation tables and narrative discussion is hereby APPROVED."

As described in the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" section above, the goal of our executive compensation programs is to attract, motivate and retain our senior management. We believe that our combination of base salary, incentive and deferred compensation programs as detailed above, properly support this goal while also providing increased value to our customers and shareholders. In addition, our executive compensation compares favorably with that of our peers as discussed in detail in the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" section contained in this proxy statement.

We encourage shareholders to read the Compensation Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 14 of the proxy statement and related compensation tables and narrative beginning on page 19, which provide detailed information on the Company's compensation policies and practices and the compensation of our named executives.

As an advisory vote, this proposal, commonly referred to as a "say-on-pay" vote, is not binding upon the Company. However, the Compensation Committee, which is responsible for designing and administering the Company's executive compensation program, values the opinions expressed by shareholders in their vote on this proposal and will consider the outcome of the vote when making future compensation decisions.

The Board has adopted a policy providing for triennial say-on-pay advisory votes, as agreed to by shareholders at our 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Unless the Board modifies this policy, the next say-on-pay advisory vote will be held at our 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the approval of the compensation of our named executive officers, as disclosed in this proxy statement.

30

## PROPOSAL 4 TO APPROVE THE YORK WATER COMPANY EMPLOYEES' STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

In September 2013, our Board adopted, subject to stockholder approval, an amendment to The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP"). The amended ESPP is being submitted to shareholders to increase the number of shares reserved for use under the ESPP by 80,000 shares, and to cause the ESPP to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). Capitalized terms used in this Proposal 4 and not otherwise defined have the meanings set forth in the ESPP, attached hereto as Appendix A.

Our Board believes that the ESPP assists the Company in hiring and retaining employees, and helps to align employee interests with those of its shareholders. Our Board recommends that shareholders approve the amended ESPP.

## Summary of Material Terms

The following is a summary of the material terms of the ESPP. The complete text of the ESPP is set forth in Appendix A to this proxy statement.

The purpose of the ESPP is to provide an opportunity for eligible employees of The York Water Company to obtain an ownership interest in the Company through purchases of common stock by payroll deductions. All full-time employees are eligible to participate after ninety days of service, but they are not required to participate. Employees may specify up to 10% of their regular straight time earnings or gross salary during each offering period. Employees may enter and exit the ESPP at any time. As of December 31, 2013, approximately 103 employees were eligible to participate, including all of our named executive officers, and 72 employees were actually participating in the ESPP, including all of our named executive officers.

The ESPP provides for four consecutive three-month offering periods commencing on the first day of a calendar quarter and ending on the last day of a calendar quarter. Employees fund their stock purchases through payroll deductions or cash payments which accumulate, with interest, over each offering period. At the end of the offering period, the Company will transmit to its agent (American Stock Transfer & Trust Co. LLC), the aggregate amount for each individual. The agent will then allocate shares, based upon the applicable purchase price, to each individual's account. The purchase price of our common stock under the ESPP is equal to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fair market value of a share of Company common stock on the Grant Date (last business day of the offering period). The fair market value is equal to the mean between the high and the low prices for the Company's common shares as quoted on Nasdaq on such date. If such price is not available, the purchase price will be determined by the Board based on the latest available market quotations or on such other basis as the Board shall deem lawful and appropriate. Shares purchased under the ESPP have the same voting, dividend and other rights as all other shares of our common stock. No fees are charged to employees for this plan.

Authorized and unissued shares are subject to purchase under the ESPP. There are no transfer restrictions to employees under the ESPP, although the tax consequences differ depending on how long the stock is held. Any participating employee who, for any reason, ceases to be a full-time employee of the Company shall be deemed to have withdrawn from the ESPP on the date employment ceases. Upon such an event, monies credited to such individual's account shall be refunded.

The Human Resources Director (currently Vice President) is the administrator of the ESPP.

Proposed Amendments

Proposal 4 requests shareholder approval of the amended ESPP, previously approved by our Board. The amended ESPP increases the number of shares reserved for use under the ESPP by 80,000, and qualifies the ESPP under Section 423 of the Code. Without shareholder approval of the ESPP, there are 15,558 shares remaining for future purchases by employees under the ESPP as of December 31, 2013. Once those remaining available shares are issued, we would effectively be required to terminate the ESPP and any 31

employee contributions that remain would be refunded to employees. If shareholders approve this Proposal 4, the total number of shares reserved under the ESPP will increase from 270,000 to 350,000, leaving 95,558 shares available for future issuance (based on shares issued under the plan as of December 31, 2013). We anticipate these additional shares will provide our ESPP with adequate shares for approximately ten years.

In addition, the amended ESPP is intended to qualify as an ESPP under Section 423 of the Code, which imposes restrictions on stock ownership by employees, and dictates the tax consequences associated with various holding periods. Employees who are 5% or more shareholders must be excluded from the plan, and purchases are limited to \$25,000 fair market value of stock during an annual period. Summarized tax information is provided below.

#### New Plan Benefits

Because benefits under the ESPP depend on the fair market value of our common stock at various future dates, it is not possible to determine the benefits that will be received by employees if they participate in the ESPP. During the fiscal year 2013, all of our named executive officers participated in the ESPP.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the aggregate number of shares issued to each named executive officer and the various indicated groups under the ESPP are:

Name:	Number of Shares Issued Under ESPP In 2013
Jeffrey R. Hines, P.E.	
President, Chief Executive Officer	1,189
Kathleen M. Miller	
Chief Financial Officer	551
Joseph T. Hand	
Chief Operating Officer	463
Bruce C. McIntosh	
Vice President – Human Resources	522
John H. Strine	
Vice President - Operations	167
All current executive officers as a group (7 persons)	3,063
All employees, excluding current executive officers	3,648

Tax Information

The ESPP is intended to qualify as an "employee stock purchase plan" within the meaning of Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, but is not intended to constitute a qualified pension, profit-sharing or stock bonus plan under Section 401(a) of the Code. The principal federal income tax consequences of the ESPP under the Code as currently in effect are outlined below. It is advisable for participating employees to obtain competent professional advice regarding the precise tax consequences of participation in the Plan. 32

Taxation on Sale of Stock: A participating employee will not recognize income on the grant of the option or on the exercise of the option. A participant's taxation with respect to the shares purchased pursuant to the option will depend on how long the participant holds the shares. If the participant holds the shares of stock until the later of two years from the Grant Date or one year from the Exercise Date (or in the event of the participant's death), the participant will be required to recognize ordinary income upon disposition equal to the lesser of (i) the excess of the fair market value of the stock on the Grant Date over the Purchase Price and (ii) the excess of the fair market value of the stock on the date of disposition of the stock over the Purchase Price. Any additional gain or loss will be short-term or long-term capital gain or loss, as applicable.

If the participant does not hold the shares of stock for the holding period described above, the participant will be taxed upon disposition on the excess of the fair market value of a share of stock on the Exercise Date over the Purchase Price, at ordinary income rates, and the participant will be taxed on any additional realized gain at long-term or short-term capital gains rates, as applicable.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the approval of The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan as amended October 1, 2013.

33

### DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY

The notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders calls for the transaction of such other business as may properly come before the meeting. The Board of Directors has no knowledge of any matters to be presented for action by the shareholders at the meeting other than is hereinbefore set forth. In the event additional matters should be presented, however, the proxies will exercise their discretion in voting on such matters.

#### SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS AND NOMINATIONS FOR DIRECTORS

Shareholder proposals to be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement and form of proxy relating to the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must be received by the Company in writing no later than November 24, 2014. In addition, all proposals will need to comply with Rule 14a-8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), which lists the requirements for the inclusion of shareholder proposals in company-sponsored proxy materials.

For a proposal to be timely for consideration at the annual meeting, but not included in the proxy statement and form of proxy relating to the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, the Company's bylaws provide that we must have received the shareholder proposal or director nomination not less than ninety days nor more than one hundred and twenty days prior to the anniversary of our annual meeting, meaning between January 5, 2015 and February 4, 2015 for the 2015 annual meeting. In the event that the 2015 annual meeting of shareholders is advanced by more than thirty days or delayed by more than sixty days from the anniversary date of the Annual Meeting, proposals or nominations for the 2015 annual meeting must be received by us no earlier than the ninetieth day prior to the date of the 2015 annual meeting of shareholders or, if later, the date which is ten days after the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made. All shareholder proposals and director nominations must also comply with the other requirements set forth in the Company's bylaws.

## OTHER MATTERS

Further information regarding the Company is set forth in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, which has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Form 10-K (including financial statements and schedules) may be obtained free of charge upon written or oral request by writing to: Bonnie Rexroth, The York Water Company, 130 East Market Street, York, Pennsylvania 17401; or by telephone to Ms. Rexroth at (717) 718-2942. Copies of exhibits to the Form 10-K will be furnished upon request and the payment of a reasonable fee. The Form 10-K is also available, free of charge, on the Investor Relations page of the Company's website at <u>www.yorkwater.com</u>.

A copy of the Company's Annual Report to Shareholders, does not form part of the proxy solicitation materials. The Annual Report to Shareholders is also available, free of charge, on the Investor Relations page of the Company's website at <u>www.yorkwater.com</u>.

34

## APPENDIX A

December 15, 1980 Amended January 12, 1981 Amended August 12, 1982 Amended November 28, 1988 Amended December 23, 1996 Amended May 27, 1997 Amended October 1, 2013

#### THE YORK WATER COMPANY EMPLOYEES' STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

## 1. PURPOSE OF THE PLAN

The purpose of the Employees' Stock Purchase Plan (the "Plan") is to provide an opportunity for eligible employees of The York Water Company (the "Company") to obtain an ownership interest in the Company through purchases of common stock by payroll deductions. It is the intention of the Company that the Plan qualify as an "Employee Stock Purchase Plan" under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and the Plan shall be administered in accordance with this intent. The Plan is effective as of its approval by the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") on September 30, 2013 (the "Effective Date"), subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company within 12 months of the Effective Date.

Pursuant to the Plan, 350,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock, no par value, are reserved for issuance thereunder (subject to adjustment upon changes in capitalization of the Company as provided in Section 20 hereof).

## 2. TERM OF THE PLAN

The operation of this Plan shall commence on the Effective Date and shall be automatically renewed from year to year unless terminated by action of the Board, provided that the Plan shall terminate automatically if it is not approved by shareholders within 12 months of the Effective Date. If less than five employees elect to participate or the participation drops to less than five employees, the Plan may be terminated.

## 3. CUSTODIAN

The Company shall be the Custodian for the Plan, unless the Company shall in its discretion select a bank or other similar type institution or organization to be the Custodian. The duties of the Custodian shall be performed in a reasonable manner, but the Custodian shall not be personally responsible for any errors in judgment or performance which are not the result of willful misconduct or gross negligence.

## 4. ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN

Except to the extent that responsibilities may be delegated to and assumed by a Custodian other than the Company, the Board of the Company shall appoint an administrator (the "Administrator") annually to oversee the Plan's operation. The Administrator's term shall be one year, to be renewed at the discretion of the Board. The Board may remove the Administrator during his or her term, if appropriate. The Board appointed the Human Resources Director to this position.

The Administrator's address is:

Human Resources Director The York Water Company 130 East Market Street York, Pennsylvania 17401-1219 Phone: 717-845-3601

The Company's Human Resources Director shall receive no additional compensation for serving as Administrator of the Plan.

## 5. ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

Any full-time employee who has been a full-time employee continuously for ninety days shall be eligible to participate in the Plan. An eligible employee may join the Plan at any time, provided that the employee has submitted to the Administrator of the Plan a properly completed and executed Stock Purchase and Payroll Deduction Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement").

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Plan to the contrary, no employee may participate in the Plan if such employee (or any other person whose stock would be attributed to such employee pursuant to Section 424(d) of the Code) owns capital stock of the Company and/or holds outstanding options to purchase such stock possessing five percent (5%) or more of the total combined voting power or value of all classes of the capital stock of the Company or of any parent or subsidiary corporation.

All employees who participate in the Plan shall have the same rights and privileges under the Plan, except for differences that may be mandated by local law and that are consistent with Section 423(b)(5) of the Code.

#### 6. OFFERING PERIODS

The Plan shall be implemented by consecutive three month offering periods commencing on the first day of a calendar quarter and ending on the last day of a calendar quarter (an "Offering Period"), provided that the Board may, in its sole discretion, extend or shorten any Offering Period.

## 7. STOCK PURCHASE AND PAYROLL DEDUCTION AGREEMENT

Each eligible employee wishing to purchase common stock of the Company pursuant to the Plan shall complete and execute a Purchase Agreement.

An eligible employee may specify as the dollar deduction from his or her gross compensation any dollar amount up to 10% of the periodic straight time earnings or gross salary during the Offering Period, such dollar amount to be deducted from each salary check as designated by the employee; provided, however, that each payroll deduction shall be a whole dollar amount, and further provided that the minimum amount that may be deducted is \$2. Any employee participating in the Plan may increase or decrease the dollar amount to be deducted from his or her compensation at any time during an Offering Period by submitting a revised Purchase Agreement. Purchase Agreement forms may be obtained from the Administrator of the Plan.

#### 8. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

In accordance with each participating employee's Purchase Agreement, payroll deductions shall be made from each of the employee's paychecks commencing with the first pay during an Offering Period after submission of a Purchase Agreement to the Plan Administrator.

The Company shall remit the amounts deducted from the paychecks issued to an interest bearing savings account within 10 days after the pay date.

## 9. ADDITIONAL CONTRIBUTIONS

An employee participating in the Plan may make an additional lump sum contribution, provided that the maximum dollar amount in Section 7 above is not exceeded.

## 10. STOCK PURCHASE ACCOUNTS

The Administrator shall establish and maintain a stock purchase account in the name of each participating employee. Each amount deducted from a participant's paycheck shall be credited to such participant's stock purchase account. The effective date of each credit to any participant's account shall be the date on which the participant is issued his or her paycheck from which the deduction is made, without regard to the date on which the check is actually received. Interest will be paid on any amounts in any stock purchase accounts at the then current rate paid by the institution holding the account. The interest will be prorated to each participant's account as of the first of each calendar quarter. At the end of each Offering Period that the Plan is in effect, the Company shall prepare and transmit to the Administrator the aggregate amount in each individual account. No fees, commissions or other charges shall be deducted from the participants' accounts.

## 11. GRANT OF OPTION

On the last day of an Offering Period (the "Grant Date"), each employee participating in the Plan during such Offering Period shall be granted an option to purchase on the Exercise Date (as defined in Section 12), at the applicable Purchase Price (as defined in Section 13) a number of shares of Company common stock determined by dividing the amount credited to such participant's stock purchase account on such Grant Date by the applicable Purchase Price.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) no option shall be granted to a participant that entitles the participant to purchase a number of shares of Company common stock that is greater than \$25,000 divided by the closing price of a share of Company common stock on the Grant Date, and (ii) no participant may accrue the right to purchase Company common stock (under this Plan and any other employee stock purchase plan of the Company and any parent or subsidiary corporation) at a rate that exceeds \$25,000 of the fair market value of such stock (determined as of the applicable Grant Date) during any calendar year.

## 12. EXERCISE OF OPTION

The option granted to a participant pursuant to Section 11 above shall be exercised automatically on the Exercise Date. The Exercise Date shall be the sixteenth day of the month immediately following the Grant Date (provided that if such day is not a business day, the Exercise Date shall be the first business day immediately following such day). Immediately following the Exercise Date, the funds credited to a participant's stock purchase account will be used by the Administrator to purchase from the Company the stock subject to the option and each participant will have allocated to his or her account the number of shares of Company common stock purchased pursuant to the option. The participant's account will be debited for the price of said shares. Any monies left over in a participant's account after the Exercise Date due to the application of the limits set forth in Section 11 above shall be returned to the participant.

Shares which have been allocated to the account of a participating employee shall remain in the custody of the Company or its agent, as Custodian, unless otherwise directed as provided in Section 14. A-3

All dividends and other distributions and all voting rights with respect to shares which have been allocated to the account of a participant but not yet distributed to the participant shall belong to and be vested in such participant, except that, at the written request of the participant, such dividends, distributions and voting rights may belong to and be vested in him or her jointly with another person or persons, or in the name or names of any other person or persons, jointly or severally.

## 13. DETERMINATION OF PURCHASE PRICE

The Purchase Price will be ninety-five percent (95%) of the fair market value of a share of Company common stock on the Grant Date. Such fair market value will equal the mean between the high and the low prices for the Company's common shares as quoted on Nasdaq on such date. If such price is not available, the Purchase Price will be determined by the Board based on the latest available market quotations or on such other basis as the Board shall deem lawful and appropriate.

## 14. DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES

Upon written request to the Administrator, a certificate for shares shall be issued and delivered to the employee as soon as practicable. Such shares shall be registered in the name of the participating employee except that, at the written request of the employee, they may be registered jointly in his or her name and the name of another person or persons or in the name or names of any other person or persons, jointly or severally. However, all shares allocated to the participating employee must be registered in one stock account only and may not be divided into more than one stock account.

## 15. WITHDRAWAL FROM THE PLAN

Any participating employee who, for any reason, ceases to be a full-time employee of the Company shall be deemed to have withdrawn from the Plan on the date employment ceases. Upon a participant's ceasing to be an employee, the payroll deductions credited to such participant's account during the Offering Period but not yet used to exercise the option shall be returned to such participant or, in the case of his or her death, to such participant's beneficiaries, and any unexercised option held by such participant shall be automatically terminated.

In addition, any other participating employee may voluntarily withdraw from the Plan at any time by written termination of the Purchase Agreement. The participant will receive an option on the next Grant Date, as set forth above, relating to payroll deductions and unallocated interest until the time of withdrawal, and such option will be exercised on the next Exercise Date and any remaining amount in the participant's account shall be returned to such participant.

Upon withdrawal from the Plan, an employee, subject to any allocation of shares to his or her nominee or nominees (as referred to in Sections 11 and 14 hereof), shall be entitled to receive any shares held by the Company or its agent, as Custodian, which have been allocated or credited to the employee's account.

## 16. EXPENSES

The charges of a Custodian other than the Company and all costs of maintaining records and executing transfers will be borne by the Company.

## 17. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

As soon as practicable after the each Grant Date, the Company or its agent, as Custodian, shall distribute to each participating employee, a quarterly statement of his or her account. The statement shall set forth as of the last day of each Offering Period during the year (i) the total number of shares allocated to the participating employee's account which is in the custody of the Custodian; (ii) the amount in the account at the beginning of the quarter and the amount of participant contributions for the quarter; (iii) dividend and interest income allocated to said participant's account; (iv) the amount debited to the account for the purchase of shares, the number of shares purchased for the account for the quarter and the purchase price; and (v) all other pertinent data relating to such account.

## 18. GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

The Plan and the transactions with respect to the Company's common stock pursuant thereto are subject to all applicable rules and regulations of state and federal law as may from time to time be effective and to such approval of governmental agencies as may be required.

## 19. TERMINATION OR AMENDMENT OF THE PLAN

The Company may terminate or amend the Plan effective as of the first day of any quarter provided that no such termination or amendment shall impair the rights of any participating employee under the Plan, or nominee or nominees of such employee, to receive any shares which have been allocated or credited to or for his or her account, and each such employee shall receive the amount of any payroll deductions and any prorated interest or dividends which should properly be credited to his or her account but which have not been applied to the purchase of shares. Upon termination of the Plan, in the event of any cash or shares remaining in the possession of the Custodian after satisfaction of all of the rights of participating employees, the same shall belong to the Company.

## 20. CHANGES IN CAPITALIZATION

Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Company, the number of shares reserved for issuance under the Plan, as well as the price per share and the number of shares of Company common stock covered by each option under the Plan which have not yet been exercised, shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Company common stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, extraordinary cash dividend, combination or reclassification of Company common stock, or any other increase or decrease in the number of shares of Company common stock effected without receipt of consideration by the Company. Such adjustment shall be made by the Board, whose determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive.

## 21. TRANSFERABILITY

Neither payroll deductions credited to a participant's account nor any rights with regard to the exercise of an option or to receive shares under the Plan may be assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise disposed of in any way (other than by will, the laws of descent and distribution) by the participant. Any such attempt at assignment, transfer, pledge or other disposition shall be without effect.

## 22. MISCELLANEOUS

A participant shall not be deemed to be the holder of, or to have any of the rights of a holder with respect to, shares of Company common stock subject to an option unless and until the participant's shares of Company common stock acquired upon exercise of an option are recorded in the books of the Company (or its transfer agent).

The Plan does not constitute an employment contract. Nothing in the Plan or in the Offering shall in any way alter the at will nature of a participant's employment or be deemed to create in any way whatsoever any obligation on the part of any participant to continue in the employ of the Company, or on the part of the Company to continue the employment of a participant.

The provisions of the Plan shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without resort to that state's conflicts of laws rules.

## 23. TAX INFORMATION

<u>In General</u>: The Plan is intended to qualify as an "employee stock purchase plan" within the meaning of Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), but is not intended to constitute a qualified pension, profit-sharing or stock bonus plan under Section 401(a) of the Code. The principal federal income tax consequences of the Plan under the Code as currently in effect are outlined below. It is advisable for participating employees to obtain competent professional advice regarding the precise tax consequences of participation in the Plan.

<u>Taxation on Sale of Stock</u>: A participating employee will not recognize income on the grant of the option or on the exercise of the option. A participant's taxation with respect to the shares purchased pursuant to the option will depend on how long the participant holds the shares. If the participant holds the shares of stock until the later of two years from the Grant Date or one year from the Exercise Date (or in the event of the participant's death), the participant will be required to recognize ordinary income upon disposition equal to the lesser of (i) the excess of the fair market value of the stock on the Grant Date over the Purchase Price and (ii) the excess of the fair market value of the stock over the Purchase Price. Any additional gain or loss will be short-term or long-term capital gain or loss, as applicable.

If the participant does not hold the shares of stock for the holding period described above, the participant will be taxed upon disposition on the excess of the fair market value of a share of stock on the Exercise Date over the Purchase Price, at ordinary income rates, and the participant will be taxed on any additional realized gain at long-term or short-term capital gains rates, as applicable.

<u>Earnings on Stock Purchase Account</u>: The participating employee must report the amount of earnings credited to his or her stock purchase account as taxable income in the year in which that interest is accrued. The Company will report to each participant the amount of interest earned yearly on an IRS Form 1099, when required, and may require certain other information from each participant to insure that there need be no federal income tax withholding on the interest earned.

The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan Stock Purchase and Payroll Deduction Agreement

1. Payroll Deduction and Purchase of Stock. I authorize The York Water Company to change my withheld contribution for my plan account as follows:

From: \$ Weekly Amount To: \$ Weekly Amount

Each such dollar amount shall be deducted from my paycheck; provided, however, that each payroll deduction shall be a whole dollar amount, and further provided that the minimum amount that may be deducted is \$2.00 and the maximum amount is less than or equal to 10% of my regular straight time gross salary, subject to the limits set forth in the Plan. Such payroll deductions shall continue to be made until I execute a revised Purchase Agreement, I withdraw from the Plan or the Plan terminates. Each payroll deduction shall be credited to my stock purchase account and shall be used to purchase common stock from The York Water Company pursuant to the The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan.

Ownership of Stock. All dividends and other distributions and all voting rights with respect to shares which have been allocated to my account but not yet distributed to me or to my nominee or nominees shall belong to and be
vested in me or my nominee or nominees, and upon distribution such shares shall be registered accordingly. At my written request, such dividends, distributions and voting rights may belong to and be vested in me jointly with another person or persons or in the name or names of any other person or persons, jointly or severally, and such

shares shall then be registered accordingly.

Rights Under The Plan. I acknowledge receipt of a copy of the Description relating to the Plan October 1, 2013.3. The rights under this Purchase Agreement shall be governed by The York Water Company Employees' Stock Purchase Plan as set forth in full in the Description.

Original Designation. I hereby designate the following as the name / names in which all shares due me under the 4. provisions of this Plan shall be registered, and such designation shall remain in full force and effect until changed by me in writing (only one such designation may be made):

(Exact name / names) Social Security Number Address

Effective Date:

By

Employee's Signature Date Administrator Date